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DEPENDE 'S REPORT
To

The Members of Palladium Constructions Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Palladium
Constructions Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2023; the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,("Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its profit,
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 113(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.
Sr.No. | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response
1 Revenue Recognition of | Principal audit procedures

Construction Contracts in

accordance with Ind AS 115
* Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts,

and tested the operating effectiveness of the internal
The application of the revenue | control, relating to identification of the distinct
accounting standard Ind AS 115 | performance obligations and determination of
transaction price.

* Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts
and performed the following procedures:

e Read, analysed and identified the distinct
performance obligations in these contracts.

» Compared these performance obligations with that
identified and recorded by the Company.

e Verified the progress towards satisfaction of
performance obligations used to compute recorded
revenue with contractual obligations, necessary
approvals pertaining to the completion of the project,
Refer Note 3 (k) to the [ third party certifications and the collectability of an
amount of consideration.

 Performed project wise analytical procedures for

involves certain key judgments
relating to identification of
distinct performance obligations,
determination of transaction
price of the identified
performance obligations, the
appropriateness of the basis used
to measure revenue recognized
ata point in time or over a period
of time.

Standalone Financial Statements.
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reasonableness of revenues.

Can-yiug values of Inventories
(Construction work in
Progress and Stock in Trade)

Principal audit procedures

There is a risk that the valuation
of inventory may be misstated as
it involves the determination of
net realizable value (NRV) and
estimated total construction cost
of completion of each of the
projects which is an area of
judgement.

Refer Notes 3 (e} and 9 to the
Standalone Financial Statements.

We assessed the Company’s process for the valuation
of inventories. Our audit approach consisted testing of
the design and operating effectiveness of the inlernal
controls and substantive testing as follows:

» Evaluated the design of the internal controls relating
to the valuation of inventories.

* Tested the operating effectiveness of controls for the
review of estimates involved for the expected cost of
completion of projects including construction cost
incurred, construction budgets and net realizable
value. We carried out a combination of procedures

involving enquiry and observation, and inspection of
evidence in respect of operation of these controls.
Selected a sample of project specific inventories and
performed the procedures around:

» Construction costs incurred for the project specific
inventories by tracing to the supporting documents,
estimated total construction cost to be incurred for
completing the construction of the project and
corroborated the same with the reports from external
supervising engineers, where applicable. Obtained the
company’s assessment of NRV for the project specific
inventories.

* The expected net amounts to be realized from the
sale ofinventory in the ordinary course of business.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) [n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended:
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h)

In our opinion and the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the provisions of section 197 are not applicable on the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as
amended, in our opinion and to the hest of our information and according to
explanations given to us:

.

iii.

vi,

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements (Refer Note 38 to the
Financial Statements).

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), which provides for maintaining books of account in accounting
software having a feature of recording audit trail of each and every
transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in books of account
along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the
audit trail cannot be disabled, is applicable to the Company only with effect
from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g)
of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), is currently not applicable.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or lvaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share
premium orany other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 48) to the
financial statements};

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received
by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer
Note 48 to the financial statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has notdeclared or paid any dividend during the year.
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2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For A.M. Ghelani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.-103172W

L ‘}\ ;
AP

Anil Khanna ;

Partner (=

Membership No. 153522 \\ < \\

Place : Mumbai N A

Date :22" May, 2023 Nl
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Palladium
Constructions Private Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAl"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
e T ST e—
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For A.M. Ghelani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.-103172W

WA ‘(\M i

Anil Khanna

Partner

Membership No. 153522
Place :Mumbai

Date  :22nd May, 2023

UDIN + 23183€22 BNGYIeTL 230F
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Annexure “B" to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i Inrespectofcompany’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:-

(a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) TheTitle Deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) As explained to us, inventories consist of Land, Reality Work-In-Progress and Food and
Beverages. According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories
have been physically verified during the year by the management at year end. The
company has maintained proper records of inventory and discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of the inventory as compared to books record which has been
properly dealt with in the books of account were not material.

(b) The company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The
quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured,/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the
reporting under clause 3 (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 185 & 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans &
investments made.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed
there under to the extent notified. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2016 prescribed by the Central Government
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of Opinion that prima facie the
prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

m
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vii.  Inrespectofstatutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March
31,2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the disputed statutory dues
are listed hereunder :-

a. Disputed KVAT Liability for FY 2015-16, including interest and penalty thereon,
amounting to Rs.28.18 Lakhs as the matter is in appeal before the DCCT (Audit),
Karnataka VAT, Bangalore. The Company has paid Rs.28.18 Lakhs in the form of
Fixed Deposit with Corporation Bank.

b.  Disputed Service Tax Liability to Rs.17.83 Lakhs as the matter is in appeal before the
Commissioner of Service Tax (Appeals) Bangalore, Karnataka.

c.  Disputed Service Tax Liability to Rs.957.61 Lakhs as the matter is in appeal before
the Commissioner of Service Tax (Appeals) Mysuru, Karnataka.

d. Disputed Goods and Service Tax Liability of Rs.109.71 Lakhs as the matter is in
appeal before Joint Commissioner of Central Taxes (Appeals) Bengaluru, Karnataka.

e. Disputed Goods and Service Tax Liability of Rs.380.82 Lakhs as the matter is in
appeal before GST Tribunal, however GST Tribunal is not yet formed.

f.  Disputed KVAT Liability for FY 2016-17, including interest and penalty thereon,
amounting to Rs.167.36 Lakhs as the matter is in appeal before the DCCT (Audit),
Karnataka VAT, Bangalore. The Company has paid Rs.50.21 Lakhs equivalent to 30%
of the said tax demand and has furnished a Bank Guarantee for the balance of
Rs.117.15 Lakhs in the form of Fixed Deposit with Corporation Bank.

g Disputed KVAT Liability for FY 2017-18, including interest and penalty thereon,
amounting to Rs.21.10 Lakhs as the matter is in appeal before the DCCT (Audit),
Karnataka VAT, Bangalore. The Company has paid Rs.6.33 Lakhs equivalent to 30%
of the said tax demand and has furnished a Bank Guarantee for the balance of
Rs.14.77 Lakhs in the form of Fixed Deposit with Corporation Bank.

viii, There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

ix.  (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not defaulted in repayment of loan or borrowing to a bank or dues to the debenture
holders of the company.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c} Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Term loans were
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

—“‘—m-__ﬁ
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(d) Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, Associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies hence reporting on clause 3(ix) (f) of the
Order is not applicable.

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has made a private placement of Optionally Convertible Debentures during the
year under review and the requirement of section 42 of The Companies Act, 2013 have
been complied with, as regards thereto. According to the information and explanations
given to us, the amounts so raised have prima-facie used for the purposes for which these
were raised.

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xii,  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiit.  [n our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  (a) Inour opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

xv.  Inour opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. Hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  {a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group does not have any CICs which are part of the Group. We have not, however,
separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and
complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.
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xvil.

xviii.

Xix.

XX.

XXi.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report.

For A.M. Ghelani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.-103172W

&7 \
Anil Khanna
Partner

Membership No. 153522 i': SUMBRZ

Place : Mumbai

Date

122" May, 2023

UDIN : 25\ 322 RGYrTUOAT AT

w

85, Mahendra Chambers [Empire Building], 134-136, Dr. D.N. Road, Fort, Mumbai — 400 001
E-mail : ghelaniandassociates@gmail.com



PALLADIUM CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
U45400MH2008PTC178115

Notes on Financial Statement for the year ended 31* March, 2023

1.

Corporate Information:

The Company is a private limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at 2" floor, R.R. Hosiery Building,
off Dr.Annie Besant Road, Mahalaxmi(W), Mumbai — 400011.

The Company is engaged in Real Estate Development as well as Hospitality Services.

For the information of the Company’s principal shareholders, refer Note No. 16

These financial statements were approved and adopted by the board of directors of the Company in their meeting
dated 22" May, 2023.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement:

The Financial Statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The significant accounting policies used in preparing financial statements are set out in Note 3 of the Notes to
Financial Statements.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Actual results
could vary from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years
(refer Note no. 4 on critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements).

Significant Accounting Policies:

a)  Basis of measurement:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except the following:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value.
e Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency and all
amounts are rounded to the nearest rupees in Lakhs.

b)  Property, Plant and Equipment:

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Capital work in progress, and all other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.
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Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the Stright Line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives as specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 2013. The residual values are not
more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives and method of

depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in statement of profit or loss.

Intangible asset:

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured.

omputer Software acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation methods and periods

Estimated useful lives of Intangible assets are considered as 5 years. Intangible assets are amortised over its
useful life using the straight-line method. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset.
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Impairment of Non — Financial Asset:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognized in prior account in period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

Inventories:

Inventories comprise Land and Realty work in progress representing properties under construction/ development
of residential project.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of realty construction / development
comprises all cost directly related to the project and other expenditure as identified by management which are
incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of the project (net off incidental recoveries,
receipts). Cost of inventories also includes all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost includes the reclassification from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges relating to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing costs.

Cost of Realty construction/development is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss in Proportion to the
revenue recognized during the period and balance cost is carried over under Inventory as part of Realty Work-

in-Progress.
Stock of Food & Beverages and Stores & Operating supplies are carried at lower of cost (computed on Weighted
Average basis) or net realizable value. Cost includes the cost of purchase including duties and taxes (other than

those refundable), inward freight and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency (ransactions:

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is the Company’s functional currency.

The transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the end of year are translated using the closing
rate of exchange. Non- monetary items that are to be carried at historical cost are recorded using exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Non- monetary items that are to be carried at fair value are recorded using
exchange rate prevailing on the date of fair value measured. Any income or expenses on account of exchange
difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Financial Instrument:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Classifications of financial instrument are in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement and as per the definitions of financial assets, financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Financial Assets and investments

1)) Initial recognition and measurement:

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

ii)  Subsequent recognition and measurement:

Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. For the purpose of subsequent recognition and measurement
financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instrument at amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.
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® Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and
is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit
and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in other income.

¢ Equity instruments:

All equity instruments are initially measured at fair value. Any subsequent fair value gain /loss is recognised
through profit or loss if such investments are held for trading purposes. The fair value gains or losses of all other
equity securities are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

iit) Derecognition:

A financial asset is primarily derecognised i.e. removed from Company’s financial statement when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from asset have expired or

® The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under ‘pass- through’
arrangement and either;

a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets,
b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement .In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the group could be required to repay.

iv) Impairment of Financial asset:

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

* Financial assets carried at amortised cost;
e Financial asset measured at FVOCI debt instruments.
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on

¢ Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
e All lease receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognise
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the group combines financial instruments on the basis

of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

V) Trade receivables:
A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect to the amount due from customers on account
of property sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
Financial Liabilities:

a) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.
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b)  Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and has
designated upon initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss.Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Loans and Borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

c)  Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the term so far existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Offsetting of Financial Instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there

is an intention to settle on a net basis, to rcalisc the asscts and scttle the liabilities simultaneously.

Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non — current:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

The Group has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liabilities and current
liabilities in accordance with Schedule III, Division II of Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a)  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
b)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c)  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d)  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Equity share capital:

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs net of taxes directly attributable to the issue of new
equity shares are reduced from retained earnings, net of taxes.
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Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from Projects

i. The Company devclops and sells residential properties. Revenue from contracts is recognised when control
over the property has heen transferred to the customer. Therefore, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the legal title has passed to the customer and the development of the property is completed. The revenue is
measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract.

ii. The Company invoices the customers for construction contracts based on achieving performance-related
milestones.

Revenue from Hospitality Services
Revenue from Hospitality Services i.e. sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services relating to hotel

operations is being recognized when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its realization or
collection. Rebates and discounts granted to customers are reduced from revenue

Interest income
Interest income from debt instrument is recognised using effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of financial asset to the

gross carrying amount of financial asset. When calculating effective interest rate, the company expects cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit

Josses.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

Employees benefits:

(i) Short-term Employee benefits:

All employees’ benefits payable wholly within 12 months rendering services are classified as Short Term
obligations. Benefits such as salaries, wages, shot term compensated absences, performance incentives, expected
cost of bonus and ex-gratia are recognised during the period in which the employees renders related services.

(i)  Long term Employee benefits:

Leave encashment being a short term benefit is accounted for using the projected unit credit method, on the basis
of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to profit and
loss in the period in which they arise.
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(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:;

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the projected unit credit method, on
the basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in Statement
of Profit and Loss.

The Company operates defined benefit plans for gratuity, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered funds. These funds are managed by LIC trusts. These trusts have taken policies from an insurance
company. These benefits are partially funded.

Employee provident fund

Contribution to provident fund, a defined contribution plan, is made in accordance with the statute, and is
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees have rendered services.

(iv) Share-based payments
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Employee Option Plan.

The fair value of options granted under the Employee Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense
with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

» Including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price)

» Excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

s Including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save or holdings
shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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m) Borrowing Cost:

0)

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Provisions and contingencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period government securities interest rate.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets
are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer
a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

Income Taxes:
Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax liabilities (assets) are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the
taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of the
reporting period and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred Income Tax is determined using
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the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred Tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax asset and
liabilities are offset where the company has a legally enforceable right offset and intends either to settle on net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, to
the extent it would be available for set off against future current income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Earning per share:

The Company’s Earning per Share (‘EPS’) is determined based on the net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders’ of the Company and weighted average number of shares outstandin g during the year. The weighted
average numbers of shares also includes fixed number of equity shares that are issuable on conversion of
compulsorily convertible preference shares, debentures or any other instrument, from the date consideration is
receivable (generally the date of their issue) for such instruments.

Fair Value measurement:

The Company measures financial instrument such as certain investments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal

or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

»Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

»Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements:

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and
Jjudgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement:

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

An external adviser or internal technical assessment is used to assist in determining their remaining useful lives and
residual value. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual value are reasonable.

(b) Intangibles

Internal technical team or users assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. Management believes that
assigned useful lives are reasonable.
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PALLADIUM CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
U45400MH2008PTC178115

Contingencies

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy.

(d) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

(e)

(h)

(1)

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems them not to be collectible.

Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the
expected life of the financial assets.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quote prices in the active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Defined Benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of Share based payments

Fair value of the options granted are based on various assumptions like entity’s share price, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period, the requirement for
employees to save or holdings shares for a specific period of time. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, Share based payment obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the group and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. They are continually evaluated.




PALLADIUM CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
U45400MH2008PTC178115

() NEW STANDARDS / AMENDMENTS NOTIFIED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE;:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are
effective 1 April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The
other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be
necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the group’s accounting policy
already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

The Company does not expect the effect of this on the financial statements to be material, based on preliminary
evaluation.




Palladium Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr No. [Particulirs Note As at 31st As at 31st
no. March , 2023 March, 2022
ASSETS
I |Non-current assets
Praperty, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 11,111.20 12,030.94
Other Intangible assets 5 32.38 23.83
Gioodwill on account of Amalgamation 26.17 26.17
Financial asscts
- Other 6 670.46 54133
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 7 1,401.05 -
(ither non-current assets 8 1,563.71 2,708.17
14.804.97 15,330.44
2 |Current assets
Inventores 9 1,18,780.10 74,108 93
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 10 6,576 16 7,202.77
- Investment 11 9,563.48 -
- Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,932.47 2,962.72
- Bank Balance other than above 13 704.74 1,037 90
- Other 14 - 95.69
Other current assets 15 4,852.70 4,657.05
1,42,409.65 90,065.06
TOTAL ASSETS 1,57,214.62 1,05,395.50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
Equity Share capital 16 3,303.17 3,303.17
(her equity 17 1,08,692.05 70,81527
1,11,995.22 74,118.44
Linbilities
2 |Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 18 4,95]1.08 4,880.71
Provisions 19 304,36 238,04
Deferted tax Liabilities (Net) 7 . 181.14
Other non-current liabilities 20 807 38 832.12
6,062.82 6,132.01
3 |Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 21 11,339.38 14,938 17
- Trade Payables 22 3,687.07 3,45831
- Other financial liabilities 23 1,106 81 1,485.33
Provisions 24 73.81 3341
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 25 431.09 11233
Other current liabilities 26 22,518.42 5117.50
39,156.58 25,145.05 |
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,57,214.62 1,05,395.50

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For A. M. Ghelani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 103172W
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Partner
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Palladium Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
Notes For the year ended on For the year ended on 31st
31st March, 2023 March, 2022

Income
Revenue from operations 27 23,340.43 21,44027
Other income 28 1,217.16 198.15
Total Income 24,557.59 21,638.42
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 29 52,677.56 6,678.51
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in-
e 30 (44,639.63) 1,355.34
Employee benefit expense 31 1,552.55 1,279.69
Finance cost 32 1,639.36 2,585.07
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 1,029.33 1,022.37
Other expense 33 6,040 46 5,911.50
Total Expenses 18,299.63 18,832.48
Profit before tax 6,257.96 2,805.94
Tax Expense: 34

Current Tax 3,046 00 598.00

Deferred Tax (1,582.49) (31.08)

Income Tax Earlier Year (11.82) 2785
Profit for the year from continuing operations 4,806.27 2,211.17
Profit for the Year 4,806.27 2,211.17
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss Afc 120 -
Income T'ax relating to the Item that will not be reclassified to Profit & =
Loss A/c (0.30)
Total comprehensive income for the Year 4,807.17 2,.211.17
(Profit + other comprehensive income)
Earning per equity share ( In Rs.) 37
Basic 14,55 6,69
Diluted 12,58 6.69
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1to49

As per our Report of even date
For A. M. Ghelani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 103172W
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Anil Khanna

Partner
Membership No.: 153522

Place:- Mumbai

Date :-22nd May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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\ O;JL‘\)J/ .

Varun Parwal
Director
DIN No0.07586435

Venkatad
Kasamsetty

mram Mohan Gupta

Chief Financial Officer
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Company Secretary
Membership No A22941

- [
SANTIAY SLUDAM W ALASRKAR
WHLE TIME Bire cR

RYNNDSY

6831239



S0°269'80'1
£9°690'¢€
060
LT908Y
LTSIS0L
Iy
PYBLLL
Lree
ESVRLD9

[2LA S

L8

3
%ﬂ(.é

L¥62ZV O digssaquuojy
Argio10ag Aurdwo)

EIEMI ExpuslEg

" ( J\ovgv
1
0£€£99¥L0 ON NIA

NS

™
TS m.r,km_\_o.;
Ym0 r«Wo.{m.

s

2
( L 390130 [erOURUL JOIYD)

SEY985L0 ON NI
109911

fesdeg unig

£103321(] JO PIEOg 341 JO J[EY3q UO PUE 104

€207 AR\ puzZ-: 91BQ

requInyA -908]d

TTSEST - ON diysiequiajy
Joupeqd

RUUEY Y
’ Il\\\
- " .
WV X
MZLIEO01  ON uonensiSay uuig
SIUBIUNODDY pasdLey))
SANEOSSY P UBPRYD "W TV 404
21Ep UAS Jo podsy Jno Jad sy

6p 01 | SIUIWIANE)S |E1PUEUL] UO SAJON PUE 53131[0,] Sununoddy Juedjiusig
060 85°EEY 20'IS1'9€ 06'9Z1'1€ 65°1€1 £€9°690'€€ PBLLL ETOT "GV J51€ 10 5w auwjeg
- - = = £9 690°E€ SUMURGAQ) 2fqIanun ) AjjTuandpy josnss
060 SUTA 1S PRULAD Ul | 550 )UTTD RwsalRsta -2y
¥ 0618 (06 18} - = - J ArTERy JuswaT|day WL e )
£ 2 LT 908 = = = = 1A% Bl 104 1oL
= 89°ISE 59°9TH'1€ 06'921'1€ 65°1€1 = FHRLLL TTOT "R ISTE 37 51 30Uy
b (06 92) 06 92 = E = - DALY TumURIday 0] JajsuRI]
# - = - [N - - swayag uondp ¥oms seadojilury
i = FRLLL 1033, 301 10) UDIpPY
* * Lz = x = - 1201 sy 10 oLy
< 8S'8LE 85°881'67 om.wu—.._n B LF'06 = | = ! - - H.Non.._.....n< —4— U R aaun|eg
sSpudWINISUT
ued pjouaq paujap uo Bwpugysing saamuRgaq [ewueuy punodwod
(SSO])/UrES JUIWAINSLITA -3y | puny 341353y Jusude|day | s3mwey paureyay WA SANLINIIG suonpdQ asryg JqiH24au0) A[jemondQ 30 yusuodwod Aymby
dwoduy Atsusysardwo) ;3O snjdans 2 sassasoy Amby 1330
Lreos's | - | Lreos's - LIE0EE
_ dn pred Aj1rg yoes /01 s
LI'€0E'E £ LUEOE'E = L1 €0g'e 30 soreys AundF (bZL°1£°0E'E A D) PZL'1EOE'E
€207 ‘YaIeL IS[E I e 1834 a1 Suuinp 7207 Mudy sy aese | aeed oy Suump jended 1207 ‘judy s 38 se
Jduereq Suiso)) [edes axeys Aynba ur ss3uey) 2ouejeq Suwadgy axeys Ambo w 23wy dueeq 3utuadQ
redea aaeys Aunby
[ T TS ) B T R R - B e e e _— T

€207 ‘U21BIA 51 ¢ I se Annby m saSuey) yo yuswayerg

STI8LID LJSO00ZTHINO0PSYN NID
PAWIT BAHJ SUOHINIISUO)) WINIpE|ed



PALLADIUM CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115
Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

" For the year ended on | For the year ended on
S Farfjenties 3lst N{arch, 2023 31t Myarch, 2022
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Nel Profit/(Loss) before Tax as per Statement of the Profit & Loss 6,257.96 2,805.94
Adfustments for Non Cash / Non Operating Income:-
Provision for Doubtful Debts (1.56)
ESOP cost 4113
Interest Expenses 1,634.36 2,585.07
Interest Income (87.89) (50.22)
Profit/(Loss) on sale of Investments (Net) (294.17) -
Fair Value Gain on Mutual fund (91.15) 5
Sundry Balances Write Back/off (7.56) (18.32)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) 6.29 9.51
Depreciation 1,029.33 1,022.37
Operating Cash Flow before Working Capital Changes 8,450.61 6,39548
Adjustments for Working Capital changes:-
Inventories (44,671.16) 1,318.01
Trade Payables and other payables 17,432.83 2.469.62
Trade Receivables and others 1,782.21 5.953.60
Cash Generated from Operations (17,005.52) 16,136.71
Taxes Paid (2,727.24) (65.69)
Net Cash Generated/(Used) from Operating Activities (19,732.75) 16,071.02
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (118.14) (32.39)
Purchase of Mutual Funds (39,350.00) -
Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds 30,171.84 -
Interest Received 183.58 24.04
Net Cash Generated/(Used} in Investing Activities (9,112.72) (8.35)
C  |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Working Capital & Term Loan repaid during the year [Net] (239.46) (12,986.77)
Lixpenses incuired for Inciease in Authorised Share Capital - (75.05)
Proceeds from issue of OFCD 33,069,63 -
Proceeds from the ICD Taken/(Refunded) (3,451.97) 2,676.97
Interest Expenses (1,562.98) (3,053.41)
Net Cash Generated from / (used in) Financing Activities 27,815.22 (13,438.26)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,030.25) 2,624.41
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,96272 33831
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,932.47 2,962.72
Significant Accounting Policies aind Notes on Finnncial Statements 1to 49
Notes:-
1 Cash and Cash Equivalents include ¢
Cash on hand 297 1.44
Balances with Scheduled Banks 1,929.50 2,961,28
Cash and Bank Balances 1,932.47 2,962.72

The tigures in brackets represent Cash outflows.

As per our Report of even date
For A. M. Ghelani & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 103172W _
0
\' .

oM . \ .

Varun Parwal
Director

‘iﬁ.il Khann
Partner
Membership No.: 153522

DIN No,07586435

Ven Subbaram
Mohan Gupta
Kasamsctty

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai

Date :-22nd May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Direcio

p
jesh Patil

Dire
DIN No.07466330

qemh/

Gajendra Mewara

Wi LeTiNG DIRECTOR

Din NO O0BFH3IRAL

Company Secretary
Membership No A2294 |
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Palladium Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115

Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note Particulars As at 31st March , As at 31st March ,
No. 2023 2022
6  |Non-Current Financials Assets- Other
Fixed Deposit with Bank (Original Maturity more than 1 year) 153.59 131.92
(Furnished as Bank Guarantee to the Karmataka VAT Authorities towards the tax demand for
Financial Year 2016-17 & 2017-18 Refer Note No. 38)
Fixed deposit with banks 516.87 409.41
( Margin Money against EPCG guarantee )
670.46 541.33
7 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
At start of year (181.14) 21222
Charge/ (credit) to profit or loss 1,582.19 (31.08)
At the end of the year 1,401.05 181.14
8  |Other Non-Current Assets
Advances to Contractors/Suppliers 1,222.74 2,283.02
Othier Advances/Deposits. 340.97 42515
1,563.71 2,708.17
9 |Inventories
Land 54,708.73 14,765.54
Realty Work in Progress 63,531.85 58,854.78
Construction Materials on hand 502,82 471.27
Food & Beverages 36.70 17.34
1,18,780.10 74,108.93
10 |Trade Receivables
Unsecured,
Ungecured, Considered good 6,576.16 7,191.83
Less ; Allowance for Expected Credit loss o ]
6,576.16 7,191.83
Significant increase in Credit Risk 1.23 13.24
Less : Allowance for Expected Credit loss (1.23) (2.30)
(0.00) 10.94
Credit impaired -
Less : Allowance for Expected Credit loss - W
(Refer Note no.44) 6,576.16 7,202.77




Palladium Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115

Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note . As at 31st March , As at 31st March ,
No. Hargeulats 2023 2022
11  |Investment
Investments measured at fair value through Profit or Loss
Aditya Birla Sun Life Crisil Growth Fund 1,019.50
97,02,506.307 Units of Rs.10.5076 fully paid up
Axis Bank Liquid Fund 1,016.78 -
40,656.637 Units of Rs.2500.8900 fully paid up
Bundhan Liquid Fund 150.00 -
5,515.226 Units of Rs.2,719.6077 fully paid up
Baroda BNP Paribas Liquid Fund 506.18 -
19,502,305 Units of Rs.2,595.4687 fully paid up
HDFC Liquid Fund 801.10 -
18,111.278 Units of Rs.4,423.2004 fully paid up
HSBC Liquid Fund 1,003.60
44,761.161 Units of Rs.2,242.1310 fully paid up -
ICICT Prudential Liquid Fund 1,004.07 -
301,353.498 Units of Rs.333.1852 fully paid up
Invesco India Liquid Fund 1,010.34
32,695.692 Units of Rs.3,090.1210 fully paid up
Nippon India Liquid Fund 1,006.77 -
18,281.902 of Rs.5,506.9354 fully paid up
SBI Liquid Fund 1,035.36 =
29,386.025 of Rs.3,523,3030 fully paid up
UTI Liquid Cash Plan Fund- Direct Growth 1,009.78
27,369.829 of Rs.3,689.4071 fully paid up
9,563.48 =
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment and Market Value thereof - 2
Agpgregate amount of Unquoted Investment 9,563.48 -
Aggrepate amount of Impairment in the value of Investment - -
9,563.48 -
12 |Cash & Cash Equivalents
a. Balances with Banks
In current accounts ],929.50' 2,947 34
b. Cheques on hand - 13.94
c. Cash on hand 297 1.44
1,932.47 2,962.72
13  |Bank Balance other than above
Fixed Deposit (Less than one year) 704,74 1,037.90
704.74 1,037.90
14 |Current Financials Assets- Other
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit - 95.69

95.69




Pallad

ium Constructions Private Limited

CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March ,

No. " 2023 2022

15  |Other Current Assets
Advances to Contractors/Suppliers 656.94 649.48
Balances with the Government Authorities 1,874.92 3,668.07
Prepaid Expenses 2,285.14 315.82
Other Advances/Deposits 35.70 23.68

4,852.70 4,657.05

16  |Equity Share Capital
Authorised
4,00,00,000 (P.Y. 4,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 4,000.00 4,000.00
10,00,00,000 (P.Y. 10,00,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each 10,000.00 10,000.00
Essued, Subscribed and Paid U
3,30,31,724 (P.Y. 3,30,31,724) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 3,303.17 3,303.17
a] Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
period
Equity Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning 33032 330.32
Shares 1ssued during the Year | .
Shares outstanding at the end 330.32 330.32
b) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% Shares in the company
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up Number of shares % of Holdings Number of shares % of Holdings
The Phoenix Mills Limited 3,30,31,724 100.00 3,30,31,724 100.00
c| Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2023

5 f

Name of Promoter No of Shares| % of total shares yﬁ;:hange gurinelthe
The Phoenix Mills Limited (Holding Company) 3,30,31,724 100 0.00%
d] The company has only one class of Equity shares having a face value of Rs, 10/- per share, Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
shire,

17 |Other Equity

Equity component of compound financial instruments:
As at the Beginning

Addition during the year

Ag at the End

Secarities Premium :
As at the Beginning
Addition during the year
As at the End

Retained Earnings :

As at the Beginning

Add/(Less): Transfer trom/to Replacement Reserve
Add: Profit for the year

As at the end

7,778.44 s
- 7,778.44
7,778.44 7,778.44
31,126.90 31,126.90
31,126.90 31,126.90
31,426.65 29,188.58
(81.90) 26.90
4,806.27 2211.17
36,151.02 31,426.65




Palladium Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Note Particul As at 31st March , As at 31st March ,
No. s 2023 2022
Replacement reserve Fund
As at the Beginning 351.68 378.58
Add{(Less): Transfer fromv/to Retained Eaming 81.90 (26.90)
As at the end 433.58 J51.68
Other Comprehensive Income
As at the Beginning a |
Add/(Less): Movement during the year 0.90 -
As at the end 0.90 -
Optionally Convertible Debentures
As at the Beginning - "
Add/(Less): Issued during the year 33,069.63 =
As at the end 33,069.63 5
Note :The OCD’s with a face value of Rupees 100/-, carry a coupon rate of 0.0001%. Each OCD shall be converted into fully paid -up equity shares of
the Company at the request of the OCD holders, not before the expiry of 10 years from the date of allotment. However, the parties shall extend the
period of converston as may be agreed to between the OCD holders and approved by the shareholders in general meeting. After the expiry of 10 years or
such other period as may be agreed by the OCD holders and approved by the shareholders, | OCDs having face value of Rs 100/- each would be
complulsorily converted into ten equity share of Rs 10/- each.
Employee Stock Option (Equity Component)
As at the Beginning 131.60 90.47
Add/(Less). Movement during the year - 41.13
As at the end 131.60 131.60
1,08,692.05 70,815.27
Nature and Purpose of Reserves
(a) |Securities Premium :
It represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities. The same can be utilized as per provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act,
2013.
(b) |Retained Earnings:
Refained eamings are the profits that the company has earned till date,less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders.
(¢) |Replacement reserve Fund
As per the operating agreement with Hotel operator, the Company is required to create a replacement reserve fund based on percentage of monthly|
revenues. The said fund is required fo be earmarked and kept separately which can be utilised only for routine capital expenditure in respect of the hotel1
property as per the operating plan or #s proposed by the hotel operator.
(d) ~Slmre option outstanding :
1t represents fair value of stock option granted to employees of the Company under "Employee Stock Option Scheme 2007" by the holding ¢ompany,
Under the scheme, employees of the Company entitles the shares of the holding company.
18  |BORROWINGS :
Secured Term loans
Standard Chartered Bank 2,971.67 3,225.51
Less:- Current maturities of Long Term Debts - (161.20)
2,971.67 3,064.31
9.46,77,866 (P.Y. 9,46,77,866) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,979.42 1,816.39
1,979.42 1,816.39
4,951.07 4,880,71
Secured Term Loan referred above of  2,971.67 lakhs (PY: 3,225.51 lakhs) taken under arrangement with SCB Bank are secured by the pari passu
charge over Courtyard Marriott, Agra, which is a 5 star hotel.
Maturity profile of Term Loan from Bank are set out below
TERM LOAN FROM BANK
Y 2023-2024 -|FY 2027-2028 630,65
FY 2024-2025 -|FY 2028-2029 709.19
FY 2025-2026 398.25|FY 2029-2030 673.38
FY 2026-2027 560.19




Palladium Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Note Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31s¢ March ,
No. 2023 2022
19 |Provisions
Pravision for Employee Benefits:
Gratuity (Funded) 134,55 108.72
Leave Encashment 169.81 129.32
304.36 238.04
20 |Other non-current liabilities
Retention Money of Contractors 807.38 832.12
807.38 832.12
21 |Borrowings
Secured :
Bank Overdraft* 14.38 -
Current maturities of Long Term Debts (Refer note no.18) 161.20
Unsecured :
Loan From Related Party (Repayable on
Demand) - Refer Note No: 36 ler i) LRBALICH
11,339.38 14,938.17

* Overdraft Facility referred above taken under arrangement with SCB Bank are secured by
is a 5 star hotel.

22 |Trade Payables

Micro & Small Enterprises #
Others.

(Refer Note no.45)

information available with the company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under :

a) Principal amount due to supplier under MSMED Act, 2006
b) Interest Accrued and due on the above amount, unpaid

©¢) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the period
d) Interest paid

e} Interest due annd payable for the period of delay

f) Interest remaining due and payable in succeeding period

23 |Other Financials Current Liabilities
Accrued Interest on ICD
Other Liabilities

24  |Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits:
Gratuity (Funded)
Leave Encashment
Salary Payable

25 |Current Tax Liabilities (net)
Tax Provisions (Net of Taxes Paid)

26 |Other Current Liabilities
Advances Received From Prospective Buyers
Statutory Dues

the pari passu charge over Courtyard Martiott, Agra, which

362,48 118.06
3,324.59 3,340.25
3,687.07 3,458.31

# There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, for more than 45days as at March 31,2023 and March 31, 2022. The
above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been dertemined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

362.48 118.06
362.48 118.06
942.81 1,029.46
164.00 455.87
1,106.81 1,485.33
5.12 4.58
45.06 17.97
23.63 10.86
73.81 33.41
431.09 112.33
431.09 112.33
22,323.14 4,950.54
195.28 166.96
22,518.42 5,117.50




Palladium Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115

Notes to Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

(Ra in Lakhs)
Notes Particulirs For the year ended on For the year ended on
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
27 |Revenue from operations
Sals of Property 18,691.11 18,800.73
Room income 2,385.93 1,244.84
Food & Beverages 1,969.30 1,339.19
Rental Income 125.73 -
Other Opernting Revenues 168.36 55.51
23,340.43 21,440.27
28 |Other Incomes
Profit/{Less) on sale of Investments (Net) 294.17
Fair value gain on Mutual Funds 9115 -
Transfer Fees Collected from Buyers 393.08 -
Flat Cancellation Income 82,74 -
Club House CAM 137.62 95.17
Holding charges Income 16.86 -
Right to use Car Parking 20.46
Ilnlemj Income :

From Buyers on delayed payments 60.86 1.87

On Fixed Deposits with Bank 87.89 5022

Interest on Income Tax Refund - 38.70

hsms Income - 9.14)
Sundry Balances Write Back/off (Net) 7.56 18.32
Untealised Gain on Foregin Exchaneg Fluctuation 11.90 -
Provision for Bad Debis reversed 1.56 -
Miscellsneous Income 11.31 .01
1,217,16 198.15
29 |Cost of materials consumed
Land cost 41,430.60 -
Consultancy Chorges 23.52 28.94
Site Operating Exp (Including P | Cost) 2,697.65 1,812.26
Civil Work (including Materials, Interiors Cost etc.) 5,259.50 3,348,94
Approvals & Statutory Pay (Incl. taxes) 943.41 7541
HEImric Installation Exp Plumbing Works, Fire Fighting Equipments etc. 1,752.41 1,008.46
Coat of Sales-Food & Beverages 57047 404.50
52,677.56 6,678.51
30 |Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in-trade
Realiy.

As at the beginning 73,620.31 74,967.80

Less : As at the end (1,18,240.58) (73,620.31)
Fi Bevern,

As at the beginning 17.34 25.19

Less : As at the end (36.70) (17.34)
Congtruction Materinls

As at the beginning 471.27 433.94

Add: Purchases 31.55 3733

Less : As at the end (502.82) {471.27)

(44,639.63 1,355.34
31 |Employee benefit expense
Salary, Wages & Bonus 1,486.83 1,196.00
Staff Welfare Fxpenses 55.18 14.89
Employee Stock Option Scheme - 41.13
Confribution to Provident Fund & other funds 10.54 2767
1,552.55 1,279,69
32 |Finance cost
Imterest expense for financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,639.36 2 585.07
1,639.36 2,585.07
33 |Oiher expense
Office Expenses 34.66 61.72
Telephone & Intemet Charges 32.60 32.54
Pastage, Printing & Stationery Expenses 53.98 3430
Legal & Professional fees 34041 220.13
Repair and Maintenance :
Buildings 166.20 121.31
Plant/Machinery 10234 52.89
Others 260.89 109.05
Auditors' Remuneration:

Audit Fees 24,08 2268
House Keeping Expenses 194.79 120.57
Interest on Delay Payments of Statutory Dues 2,05 -
Travelling Expenses 83.11 34.50
CAM Expenses 486.19 63831
Bunk Charges 3591 12,98
Donations 7.88 14.90
Directors Sitting Fees 0.40 220
Husiness Promotion Expenses 1,020.08 569.88
Brokerage/Commission 369.32 175.95
Rebates & Settlement 8852 392.16
Royalty Fees & Incentives 201.89 95.62
Insurange 31.38 45,54
Power & Fuel expenses 531.76 366.14
Rates & Taxes 1,577.31 2,11330
Liner, Room Supplies & Other Supplies 172.91 148.64
Club House Maintenance 133.85 141.36
Cory social responsibility expenditure 71.44 159,96
Misesllansous Expenses 16.51 224,87

6,040.46 5.911.50




Palladium Constructions Private Limited
CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

(Rs._in Lakhs)|
For the year For the year
Note - ended on ended on
No. articulars 31st March ,2023 | 31st March ,2022
34 |Taxation
A Income tax recognised in profit or loss
1 Income Tax
Current Year Provision 3,046.00 598.00
3,046.00 598.00
2 Tax Adjustment for Earlier year (11.82) 27.85
(11.82) 27.85
3 Deferred Tax expenses/ (benefits):
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,582 49) (31.08)
(1,582.49) (31.08)
4 Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss 0.30 -
030 -
Total Income tax Expenses (1 to 4) 1,451.99 59477
B Reconcilintion of Current Tax expenses:
Profit /(Loss) from Continuing operations 6,257.96 2,806,00
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed tax expenses 1,575.00 706.00
Additional allowances for tax purpose 327.64 (157.82)
Expenses not allowed for tax purposes (874.84) 57.55
Other temporary difference 1,819.30 (31.81)
Tax paid at lower rate 198.90 58.03
Loss Carry Forward - (33.95)
3,046,00 598.00
C  Deflerred Tax Recognised in statement of profit and Loss relates to the lollowing:
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose (1.44) (32.46)
Expenses allowable on payment basis 23.65 63.64
Income offered for Tax under Construction Contract (Percentage Completion Method) 1,598.00 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts 0.31 -
Others 0.11 -
Moratorium Interest paid (38.13) -
Deferred tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.30)
Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Asset) 1,582.20 31.08
——
Particulars
Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities/(asset) net:
Opening balance as on Ist April (181.15) (212:23),
Tax expenses / (income) during the year 1,582.19 31.08
Closing balance as on 31st March 1,401.04 (181.15)]

35 |Employees Benefits:

Expenses recognised for Defined contribution plan:

For the year
ended on
31st March ,2023

For the year
ended on
31st March, 2022

Company's Contribution to Provident Fund 30.75 2201
Company's Contribution to Employees Stale Insurance 5.74 4,54
3749 27.58
Expensey recognised for Defined benefits plan:
"The company provides gratuity benefit to its employees which are a defined benefit plan, The present value of obligations is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method
Guuluily
(Funded)
For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31st March ,2023 | 31st March, 2022
1 |Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning 188.86 147,14
Interest Cost 15.03 11,48
Current Service Cost 2575 22,02
Benefits paid during the year (8.68) (2.09)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Defined Benefit Obligation (1.18) 10,31
| Defined Benelit Obligation at the end 219.78 188.86
2 |Change in fair value of Plan Assets during the year
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning 75.56
Expected Return on plan assets 491
Confribution 1.65
Benefits paid during the period (2.58)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Asset 057
Fair valug-of Plan Assets at the end 80.10




{Rs. in Lakhs)

|Amount (o be recognized in Balance sheet:

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 219.78 188.86
Fair Value of plan assets at the end (80.10) (75.56)
Am t recognized in Bal sheet 139.68 113.30
Current / Non - current bifurention:
Current benefit obligation 5.12 4,58
Non - current benefit obligati 134.55 108.72
Expense recognized in the S of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 2575 22,02
Interest cost on abligation 1012 6.60
Exy recognized in the St of Profit & Loss 35.87 28,62
Actuarinl (gain)loss recognized in the 5 of Profit & Losy
Remensurement due tos
Effiect of change in financial assumplions 1.34 3.39
Effect of change in demographic assumptions - 11.35
([Effsct of experience adjustments (2.53), (4.43)
Return on plan of assets( excluding interest) 0.57) 1.69
Net Actunrial (gain)/loss recognized for the yenr (1.76) 12.00
Acturial plions used for estimating defined benehit ol lig
Discount Rate 7.30% 7.40%
Salary Escalation Rate 7.00%| 7.00%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets 7.00% 7.00%
Mattality Rate IALM (2012-14)  [IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate
Attnition/ Withdrawal Rate 15.00% 15.00%
The weighted average duration of plan 9.33 years 12.68 yenrs

Compensated Absence Benefit

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year

(Funded)
For the year Far the year
ended on ended on

31st March ,2023 | 31st March, 2022

Attrition/ Withdrawal Rate
The weighted average duration of plan

Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning 147.29 85.49
Interest Cost 12,53 8.14
Current Service Cost 30.99 3491
Benefits paid during the year (15.83) (2.41)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Defined Benefit Obligation 39.89 21,16
Defined Benefit Obligntion at the end 214.87 147.29
Amount to be recoguized in Balunce sheet:
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 214.87 147.29
Amount recognized in Balance sheet 214.87 147.29
Current / Non - current bifurcation:
Current benefit obligation 45.06 17.97
Non - current benefit oblig 169.81 129.32
Expense gnized in the Staler of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 3099 3491
Interest cost on obligation 12,53 8.14
Actuarial (gain)/losses 39.89 (130.89)
Expense recopnized in the St of Profit & Loss 83.41 (87.84)
Actarial ptions used for estimnting defined benefit
Discount Rate T.40% 7.40%|
Salary Escalation Rate 7.00% 7.008%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets N.A N.A
Martality Rate 1ALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate

15%% ‘o

o
9.33 years 12.68 years|




Notes:
1 Salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into regular incr price i
supply and demand in employment market.

o

and promotion and other relevant factors such as

2 Discount rate is based on prevailing market yields of Indian Government Securities as at balance sheet date for esti d term of oblj

3 Attrition rate/ withdrawal rate is based on Company's policy towards retention of employees, historical data and industry outlook
4 Expected contribution to defined benefit plans for the financial year 2023-24 is Rs. 2.00 Lakhs

5 The above information is certified by actuary.

Investment Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on govemment bonds. For other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to market yield at the end of
reporting period on high quality corporate bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create
a plan deficit.

Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability, however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan debt
investments,

Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and
after their employment, An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk
The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan particiy As such, ani in the salary of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

36 [Related party Disclosure:
In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party, related party relationship, transactions and
n .

dino hal Avef]

outst ing cc where control exits and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods, are:

he
p

) Related Party with whom transactions have been taken place and re):

Name of the party Relationship

1 |The Phoenix Mills Lid Holding Company

2 |Marketcity Resources Pyt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary

3 |Pallnzzio Hotels and leisure limited Fellow Subsidiary

4 |Vamona Developers Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

5 |Classic Mall Development Company Limited Assoointos

6 |Blackwood Developers Pvi Ltd Fellow Subsidiary

7 |Upal Developers Pvt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary

8 |Gangetic Developers Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

9  |Sparkleone Mall Developers Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary

10 |Radhakrishna Ramnarain Private Limited Enterprises over which Key Managerial P 1 are able o
significant influence/ Control

11 |Senior Advisory Services Private Limited Enterprises over which Key M ial P | are able to
significant influence/ Control

12 |Ashok Apparels Private Limited Enterprises over which Key Managerial P | are able to
significant influence/ Control

13 |Aakar Charitable Trust Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence/ Control

14 |Shishir Shrivastava Key Managerial Person

15 |Rajesh Kulkarni Key Managerial Person

16 |Raghav Bajoria Key Managerial Person

17 |Venkata Subbaram Mohan Gupta Kasamseity Chief Finaneial Officer

18 JAtul Ruia Key Managerial Person

19 |Sanjay Wagaskar Key Managerial Person

20 |Gayatri A Ruia Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

21 |Jaymala 8 Wagaskar Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

22 |Sharmila Dalmia Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

23 |Kavitha Kaithan Beneficiary Trust Relatives of Key Managerial Personne!

24 |Preeti Rajesh Kulkami Relativis of Key Managerial Personnel




b) Transactions during the year:

Nature of Transactions

(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
ended on ended on

31th March, 2023

31st March, 2022

L linter Corporate Deposit Repaid (Linbility)
Upal Developers Pvt Ltd

Gangetic Developers Privale Limited
Offbeat Developers Private Limited

The Phoenix Mills Limited

2 |inter Corporate Deposit Taken (Loans)
Upal Developers Pvi Ltd

Gangetic Developers Private Limited

The Phoenix Mills Limited

3 |Interest Expenses on ICD

"The Phoenix Mills Limited

Classic Mall Development Compnay Limited
Vamona Developers Private Limited

Upal Developers Pvt Ltd

Offbeat Developers Private Limited
Giangetic Developers Private Limited

4 |Issue of Optionally Convertible Debentures
Gangelic Developers Private Limited
The Phoenix Mills Limited

5 |Interest On Optionally Convertible Debentures
Gangetic Developers Private Limited
The Phoenix Mills Limited

6 |Interest expenses on redemabale Preference Shares
Vamona Developers Private Limited

7 |(expenses) (Excluding Service Tax & GST)
Market City Resources Private Limited

8 |Professionnl Fees
Gayatri A Ruia

9 bSnk of Construction Material/Services
Sparkle One Mall Developers Private Limited
Pallazzio Hotels and leisure limited

10 fAdvance received against Sale of Property
Shishir Shrivastava

Rajesh Kulkarni

Preeti Rajesh Kulkarni

Raghav Bajoria

Radhakrishna Ramnarain Private Limited
Senior Advisory Services Private Limited
Ashok Apparels Private Limited

Atul Ruia

Ghayatri A Ruia

Jaymaln S Wagaskar

hshmmilu Dalmia

Kavitha Kaithan Beneficiary Trust

11 |Preference Shares
Vamaonn Developers Private Limited

12 |Remuneration

Raghav Bajoria

Venkata Subbaram Mohan Gupta Kasemsetty
15nmuv Wagaskar

13 |Donation
Aakar Charitable Trust

14 |Snle of Property

Radhakrishna Ramnarain Private Limited
Senior Advisory Services Private Limited
Ashok Apparels Private Limited

15 |Director Sitting Fees
Shweta Vyas
Swapnil Kothari

16 |Advance Received Refund
Atul Ruia
Gayatri A Ruia

17 |Gratuity and Leave Encashments
Venkata Subbaram Mohan Gupta Kasamsetty
Sanjay Wagaskar

Project Management Consultancy Fees/Corporate Cost

Conversion of Inter-Corporate Deposit to Redeemable

2,920.00

531.97

1.97
1,047.56

89.76

3,069.63
30,000.00

0.00
0.00

163.02

122.60
30.00

4,89
032

116,73
70.18
111.75

164.96

44881
460,73

0.40

0.50
0.50

4,70
374

941.00

775.00
7,368.03

941,00
2,920.00
7,900.00

224,67
1,047.56
130.01
31.84
5.50
93.16

52.50
30.00

13.87

27.99
27.44

18,68
74.25
99.00
2475
49.50
49.50
45.10
2452
3255

9,467.79

23974
5990

17,72

419.18

633.99

0.80
1.40




~

<) Balances as at the end

(Rs. m Lakhs)_
Asat As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
8r.
Nuture of Balances
No.
___ (Rs.) (Rs.)
1| Equity Share Capital (Face Vatue)
The Phoenix Mills Limited 3,303.17 3,303.17
2| Preference Share Capital (Face Value)
Vamona Developers Private Limited 9,467.79 9,461.79
3|Inter Corporate Deposits
Classic Mall Development Compnay Limited 11,325.00 11,325.00
Vamaona Developers Private Limited - -
Offbeat Developers Pvt Ltd - -
The Phoenix Mills Limited - 53197
Guangetic Developers Private Limited - 2,920.00

4| Accrued Interest Payable
Classic Mall Development Compnay Limited 94281 960.61
Vamona Developers Private Limited - -
Offbent Developers Pvt Ltd - -
The Phoenix Mills Limited -
Gangetic Developers Private Limited - 68.84

Optionally Convertible Debentures
Gangetic Developers Private Limited 3,069.63 -
The Phoenix Mills Limited 30,000.00 -

SL\IIVHIICL‘ Received from prospective buyer

Shishir Shrivastava 125.65 7238
Rajesh Kutkarni - 98.40
Preeti Rajesh Kulkarni 177.89 -
Raghav Bajoria 131.47 87.87
Radhakrishna Ramnarain Private Limited - 74.25
Seniar Advisory Services Private Limited - 99,00
Ashok Apparels Private Limited 73.76 24.75
Atul Ruia - 49.50
Gayatri A Ruia - 49.50
Jaymala S Wagaskar 174,43

Sharmila Dalmia 281.21

Kavitha Kaithan Beneficiary Trust 378.48

Advance Given Back to prospective buyer

Al Ruia - -
Goyatri A Ruia - -
Trade Payable

Market City Resources Private Limited 41.63

6| Trade Receivables
Sparkle One Mall Developers Private Limited - -

Radhnkrishna Ramnarain Private Limited - 327.53
Ashok Apparels Private Limited - 570.55

Note : =

1 The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions

2 Review of outstanding balances is undertaken each fi ial year througt ining the fi ial position of the related party and the market in

p

which related party operates. These balances are unsecured and (heir seltlsment occurs through Banking channel.

Earning per share: (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31st March ,2023 | 31st March, 2022
Particulars
1) Mot profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss. 4,806.27 2,211.17
if) |[Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating Basic EPS 3,30,31,724 3,30,31,724
iii}] Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating Basic DEPS 3,81,96,719 3,30,31,724
iv)| Basic Eamings per share (Rs.) 14,55 6.69
v)| Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 12,58
vi)|Faco value per equity share (Rs) 10.00
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a)
|

b]

-~

¢

~

d

~

)

Contingent Liabilities

Disputed Service Tax Liability of Rs.17.83 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.17.83 lakhs) as the matter is in appeal before the Commissioner of Service Tax (Appeals)
Bangalore, Karnataka,

Disputed Service Tax Liability of Rs.957.61 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.957.61 lakhs) as the maiter is in appeal before the Commissioner of Service Tax (Appeals)
Mysuru, Karnataka.

Disputed Goods and Service Tax Liability of Rs.109,71 lakhs (P.Y.Rs.109.71 lakhs) as the matter is in appeal before Joint Commissioner of Central
Taxes ( Appeals) Bengaluru, Kamnataka.

Disputed Goods and Service Tax Liability of Rs.380.82 lakhs (P.Y. Rs,380.82 lakhs) as the matter is in appeal before GST Tribunal, however GST
Tribunal is not yet formed.

Digputed KVAT Liability for FY 2015-16, including interest and penalty thereon, amounting to Rs,28.18 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.28,18 lakhs ) as the matier is in
ppeal before the DCCT (Audit), K ka VAT, Bangalore. The Company has paid Re. 28.18 lakhs equivalent to 100% of the said tax demand.

Disputed KW\T Liability for FY 2016-17, including interest and penalty thereon, amounting to Rs.167.36 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.167.36 lakhs) as the matter is
mK ka Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore B lore, The Company has paid Rs.50.21 lakhs equivalent to 30% of the said tax demand and has
fumnished s Bank G for the bal of Rs.117.15 lakhs in the form of Fixed Deposit with Corporation Bank,

=~

h

(=2

Disputed KVAT Liability for FY 2017-18, including interest and penalty thereon, amounting to Rs.21.10 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.21.10 lakhs) as the matter is in
Kurnatakn Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore. The Company has paid Rs.6.33 lakhs equivalent to 30% of the said tax demand and has furnished a Bank
Gunranteo for the balance of Rs.14.77 lakhs in the form of Fixed Deposit with Corporation Bank,

During the FY 2020-21, the Company has filed Writ Petition in Hon® High Court of Karnataka against Bruhat Bengaluru Mahanagara Palike relating (o
levy and collection of ground rent, surcharge on BWSSB, Ring Road, Improving slums, MRTS for an amount of Rs. 743,19 lukhs (P. Y. 743.19 lakhs),
Out of this basis interim order Rs.31.62 lakhs is paid by the company and balance Rs.711.58 lakhs is pending for final disposal




Palladium Constructions Private Limited

CIN: U45400MH2008PTC178115

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Note fpy rticulars
No,
39 |Fair Value of Financial asscts and Liabilities:
Set out below is the comparison by class of carrying amounis and fair value of Company's financial instruments {hat are
(R, In Lokhs)
An at_31st March, 2023 As at_31st March, 2022
Particulars [= Fair Fair
Carrying Value Value Carrying Value Valu
|Financisl asscts designated at fair value i
Profit and Loss
Investmanis 956348 9.,563.48 - -
{Finunelal Assets designated at amortised cost
Tende Receivables 6,576,16 6,576.16 7,202,77 7,202.77
(Cith and Cash Equivalents 1,932.47 193247 2,962.72 2,962.712
k!imﬁ Balancon other than above 704.74 704.74 1,037.90 1,037.90
Otheer financin| asscls 67046 670.46 637.02 637.02
Total 1944731 1944731 1184040 1154040
Financinl liabilitics designated at amortised cost
 lormowdngs 16,290.47 16,290.47 19,818.87 19,818.87
(Trade payables and others 3,687.07 3,687.07 1,715.73 1,715.73
Other finanain] liabilities 1,106.81 1,106.8] 3,227.90 3,227.90
Totnl 21,1184.35 21,084.35 24,762.51 24,762.51
Fnir valuation techniques:
The Company maintains policics and procedures Lo value financial asscts or (inancial liabilitics using the best and most relevant data available,
The {otlowing methods and wero used (o estimale tho fair valucs
I Fair valuc of cash and deposits, trade reccivables, lrade payables, and other current financial asscts and Jiabilitics approximate their carrying amounts largely duo to the shori-
term maturities of these insiruments,
2 Borowings arc cvalualed by the Company based on paramclers such as interesl rates, credil risk and other risk characierislics. Fair value of variable inlcrest rate borrowings
approximales tlicir carrying valucs. Risk of non-performance for the company is idered to bo i ificant in valuati
3 Fuor valuc of current investment in Mutun} fund is calculated based on NAV declare by Fund
2022.23 2021-22
Lowal 1 Level 2 Level 3 Laval 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets /Llabllitles measured at falr value
Flnanclal Assets:
Investments In Mutual Fund 9,563.48 - -
40 |Sepment reporting:
The Company s In the business of Real Eslate Devel as well as Hospitality Services, Considering (he nature of thc company’s business and operalions, therc are lwo
soparile reportable scgments (business and/or hical) in d. with (he req of Indian A Standard (IND AS)108 —*Scgmenl Reporting’
Exeeutive Direetor (the* Chicf Operational Decision Maker as defined in INDAS]08 - Operating Scgnicnts) monitors tho operating results of the entily’s business for the purposc of
iniking decisions aboul resource allocation and performance assessment
:‘: Particulars Real Estaic Development Hospltallty Services Unallocated Total
As at 31t As at 31st March,| As at 31si March, | As at 31st March,| As at 31st March, Asat 31st Asat Jlst Asat st
Mareh, 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 March, 2022 March, 2023 March, 2022
A |Revenue
Nevenue From Operalions 18,816.84 18,800.71 4,523 59| 2,639,54) - - 23,340.42 21,440.26|
Other Income 1,124.92 162.2) 92,23 3592 - - 1,217.15 198.15
Total 19,941.7G 18,962.96, 4,615.82] 2,675.44 - . 24,557.57| 21,638.41
B |Resulls
1 |Profit/(Loss) Before Tax & Inicres 7,680,384 5.918.54 216.57 (527.54) " 3 7,897.45 5,391,001
2 |Less: Interest (1,372.86) (2,166.05)| (266.50j] (419.02) - - (1,639.36)| (2,585.07)|
Proflt/(Loss) Before Tax 6,308.02 3,752.49 (49.9) (946.56) - - 6,258.09 2,805.93
LLess: Provision for Tax (nct of Deferred Tax) - - - - 1,451.69) (594,77 1,451,69) (594.77)|
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 6,308.02) 3,752.49| (49.93)} (946.56) 1,451.69 (594.77) 7,709.78 2,211.16]
C |Other Inf i
Scginent Asscls 1,28,657 85| 87,570.20{ 12,302 39] 13,803,35 16,254.36 4,021.97 1,57,214.60] 1,05,395 4§
Scgmenl Liabililics 39,766,52 25,919.73 3,64824 4,059,54) 1,804.64 1,297.77 45,219.41 31,277.04
D |Other Diclosurgs
Capilal Expenditure 22,75 632 95.40§ 26,07 - E 3239
Deprecialion 21.34 10.07] 1,003 86) 1,012,354 4 4 102217
41 |Deferred Tax :-
Particulurs [Deferved tax Previow Yenr | Defcrred tax Cureent Year | Deferved tax
Asset/{Linbiliny) |(Charpe) credit |Asset/(Linbilliy) w | (Chirge) credit | Asset/(Linhility)
ns al March 31, nt March 31, 2022 s nt March 31,
1021 2023
DifTerence between Book and Tax Deprecialion (252.40) (3L46) (284.86) (1.44) (286,300
Provisionn for Graluity and Leave Encashment 40.18 2540 65.58 23.65 8923
Marateriun Interest paid . 3813 38.13 (38.13) =
Provision for doubtful debtors - - - 031 031
Impact on Accounting for Real Estac Project
Ineome( Percentage Completion Method) - - 1,598,00 1,598.00
Others - ® (0.19) (0.19)
Deforred Tax Mlulﬂ Linbility) {212.22) 31.07 (151.15) 1,562.20 1401.05
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Note -
No. |Particulars
42 [Financinl risk Manag
The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, This note explains the sources of risks which the entity is exposed to and how it mitigates that risk.
® Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl b of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk,

interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and investments in securities.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl b of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through purchases of goods or services from overseas supplier in foreign currency. The Company generally transacts in US dollar. The foreign exchinge
rate exposure is balanced by purchasing of goods or services in the respective currency.
The Company is exposed to insignificant foreign exchange risk as at the respective reporting dates.

nlerest rate risk

Fluctuation in fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument because of changes in market interest rates gives rise to interest rate risk. Almost 100% of the company’s borrowings are linked ti BR|
+ Margin p.a. floating at Monthly rest including TP. With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of change in interest rate on borrowing cost on floating rate portion
of loans.

Incrense/ (decrease) in Interest cost of Long term borrowings for the year :

Effect on Profit/(Loss) before tax

Change In Rate of
Interest
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2022
+1%/-1% 29.72 32.26

Commodity. and Other price risk

'The Company is not exposed to the commodity and other price risk.

® Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company that a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating

activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, mutual funds, financial institutions and other financial instruments,

Trade and other recivables:
The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business, The Company considers factors such as credit track record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. To
manage credit risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the customer, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and|
aging of accounts receivables. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored to make an assessment of recoverability. Receivables are provided as doubtful / written off, when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Where receivables have been provided / written off, the Company continues regular followup , engage with the customers, legal options / any other remedies available
with the objective of recovering these outstandings.
The Company is not exposed to concentration of credit risk to any one single customer since services are provided to vast specturm and hence, the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables ig

tow. The Company also takes security deposits, advances , post dated cheques etc from its customers, which mitigate the credit risk to an extent

Cash and cash equivalents an other investmenty

The Company is exposed to counter party risk relating to medium term deposits with banks and investment in mutual funds.
The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Generally, the
balances are maintained with the institutions with which the Company has also availed borrowings. The Company does not maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than those required for its
day to day operations.

Eixposure to credit risk
The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of impairment losses recognised represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2023 and March 3 1,2022
is ns follows:

As at As at

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL):
Cash and cash equivalents 1,932.47 2,962.72
Bank Balances other than above 704,74 1,037.90
Other Investment 9,563.48 -
Other financial assets 670.46 637.02
Financinl assets for which loss allowances is measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL):
Trade receivables 6,576.16 7,202,717

Cash and Cash equivalent, other Investment, Loans an other financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. Management is of view that these financial assets are considered good and 12 months ECL i

not provided.
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® Liquidity risk

provided by lender.

through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars Carrying Amount | On Demand Less than 1 Y7 1-Syrs >5 years Total
Barrowings 16,290.47 11,339.38 . 1,589.09 3,361.99 16,290.47
Other Financial Liabilities 1,106.81 1,106.81 . - - 1,106.81
Trade and other payables 3,687,07 3,687,07 - - - 3,687.07
As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars Thrrying Amount |On Demand Less than 1 Yy 1-5yrs >3 yoars Totnl
Borrowings 19,818.87 14,776.97 161,20 1,051.09 3,829.62 19,818.88
Other Financial Liabilities 3,227.90 3,227.90 - - 3,227.90
‘Trade and other payables 1,715.73 1,715.73 - - - 1,115.73

Capital management

March 31, 2022

Pariculars
L.oans and Borrowings

Net Debt

Total Capital
Capital+Net Debt
Gearing Ratio

other payables less cash and short term deposits,

L.ess: Cash and cash equivalents + Bank Deposits

43 |Financial Ratios
Sr No Ratios
1 Current Ratio
2 Debt Equity Ratio
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio
4 Return on Equity Ratio
5 Inventory Tumover Ratio
6 Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio
7 Trade Payables Tumover Ratio
8 Net Capital Tumover Ratio
9 Net Profit Ratio
10 Return on Capital Employed

11

Retumn on Investment

Numerator
Current Assets

Total Debt

Net Operating
Income

Net Income

Cost of Goods
Sold
Credit Sales

Credit Purchases

Net Annual Sales

Net Profit before
tax

EBIT
Other Income

Denominator
Current Liabilities

Total Shareholder's
Equity

Total Debt Service

Average Shareholder's
Equity

Average Inventory

Average Trade
Receivables

Average Trade
Payables

Average Working
Capital

Net Sales

Capital Employed
Average Cash, Cash
and Cash Equivalent
and Marketable
Securities

As At
31-03-2023

14,311.05
2,637.20
11,673.85
1,11,995.22
1,23,669.07
0.09

31-03-2023
3,64

5.16%

2,76

1642

023

20.55%

6.16%
2.65%

As At
31-03-2022

18,002,48

4,000.62
14,001.86
74,118.45

88,120.31
0.16

31-03-2022
3,58

3.20%

011

1.84

431

033

10.31%

5.84%
2.04%

Variation

1.54%

-45.60%

35.46%

61.50%

-22.78%

49.92%

280.83%

-31.55%

99.67%

5.40%
29.71%

The Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company relies on a mix of borrowings, capital infusion and excess

operating cash flows to meet its needs for funds. The current borrowings are sufficient to meet its short to medium term expansion needs. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position

The Company is required to maintain ratios (such as debt service coverage ratio and secured coverage ratio) as mentioned in the loan agreements at specified levels and also cash deposits with banks 10

mitigate the risk of default in repayments. In the event of any failure to meet these covenants , these loans become callable to the extent of failture at the option of lenders, except where exemption is

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. The Company’s primary objective when managing capital is to ensure that it maintains an efficient
capital structure and healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to support its business and provide maximum retumns for shareholders. The

Company also proposes to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2023 and

Faor the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and

Remarks

Issue of Optionalable
Convertible Debenture has
resulted in decrease in the ratio

Revenue growth has resulted in
improvement in the ratio

Higher realization of debtors and
increase in revenue has resulted
in improvement in the ratio

Increase in purchases / expenses
has resulted in improvement in
the ratio

Higher realization of Advances
from Customer has leads
reduction in Ratio

Profitability growth has resulted
in improvement in the ratio

Increase in cash and cash cash
equivalents due to higher
collections
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44 |Ageing of Trade Receivables
March 31,2023
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
months
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 3,796.59 2,180.58 - - 598.99 6,576.16
considered good
(11) Undisputed Trade receivables - . - _ - - -
which have significant increase in credit
sk
(i11) Undisputed Trade receivables - - = = = 3 .
credit impaired
(1v) Disputed Trade receivables - - - . i & =
considered good
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which - - . . c :
have significant increase in credit risk
(v1) Disputed Trade receivables - credit - - £ = i .
impaired
Total (A) 3,796.59 2,180.58 - - 598.99 6,576.16
Unbilled Revenue (B) =
Total (A) + (B) 6,576.16
March 31,2022
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Tuotal
months
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - 299.84 2.79 15.07 1,441.69 1,074.15 2,833.54
vonsidered good
(11} Undisputed Trade receivables - - 0.96 - 2,04 10,24 13.24
which have significant increase in credit
risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - - = - - - .
credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - = = = z 2 .
considered good
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which - - = = & =
have significant increase in credit risk
(wi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit = & = . B
impawed
Total 299,84 3.75 15,07 1,443,72 1,084.39 2,846.77
Unbilled Revenue (B) - - - - - 4,355.99
Total (A) + (B) 299.84 3.75 15.07 1,443.72 1,084.39 7,202.76
45 |Ageing of Trade Payables
March 31,2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 362.48 - - - 36248
(ii) Others 856.05 28324 62.89 1,202,19
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - c = %
(iv) Disputed dues - Others = = B 5 -
(v) Unbilled 2,122.40 2,122.40
3,340.92 28324 - 62.89 3,687.07
March 31,2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 118.06 - - - 118.06
(ii) Others 813.40 321.86 134.90 327.50 1,597.67
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME » - = - =
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - . = =
(v) Unbilled 1,742.58 - - - 1,742.58
2,674.04 321.86 134.90 327.50 3,458.31
46 |Additional Information as per section | 86(4) of the Companies Act,2013
a) There are no Loans given to any body corporate as at 31st March, 2023,
bb) There are no investments or guarantees given to any body corporate as at 31st March, 2023.
47 |Corporate Social Responsibility:
(X In Lakhs)
2022-23 2021-22
1) CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 71.44 159.96
read with Schedule VII thereof by the Company during the year
i) Amount spent during the year by way of contribution to a trust 164.96
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48

49

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule I1T

Details of benami property held -
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder

Borrowing secured against current assets
The company does not have borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets

Wilful defaulter
Cdmpany have nol been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govetnment or any government authority

Relationship with struck off com panies
The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

Campliance with approved schemne(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into anty scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year

Utilisntion of borrowed funds and share premium

I'ie company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Inter mediary shall:

a directly or indirectly lend or invest in othes peisons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b.  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behall of the ultimate beneficiaries

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company
shall:

a.  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

v provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Undisclosed income
There is no inconie surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year,

Yiluation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including righl-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year

Figures of previous year have been regrouped and/or recast wherever necessary Lo conform to the current year's classification
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